ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 29, 2015
3:30 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATION: ROLE OF THE STATE BQOARD OF EDUCATION, FEDERAL
GRANT PROGRAMS AND CORRESPONDI NG MANDATES

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

M KE HANLEY, Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on the role of the
State Board of Education and answered questions about federal
grants.

SUSAN MCCAULEY, Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on federal grants.

KENNY GALLAHORN, Menber

State Board of Educati on
Kot zebue, Al aska

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -1- January 29, 2015



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Said his role is to learn from today's
di scussi on.

MARGARET MCKI NNON, Specialist - Title 1/NCLB

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned requirenents for the education of
m grant chil dren.

PAUL PRUSSI NG Deputy Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions related to Title |
grants.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:30:41 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Gar dner, Stevens and Chair
Dunl eavy.

PRESENTATI ON:  ROLE OF THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATI ON; FEDERAL
GRANT PROGRAMS AND CORRESPONDI NG MANDATES

3:31:22 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that there would be a presentation by
Comm ssioner Hanley of the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED) on the role of the State Board of Educati on,
followed by a discussion of Federal Gant Prograns and
correspondi ng mandates. He said the goal of the presentation by
t he conmmi ssi oner i's to better under st and t he rol e,
responsibilities, obligations, and interactions of DEED, the
commi ssioner, and the State Board of Educati on.

M KE HANLEY, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED), introduced hinself.

SUSAN  MCCAULEY, Director, Teaching and Learning Support,
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), introduced
hersel f.

3:33:47 PM

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 2- January 29, 2015



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY explained the overall structure of DEED,
noting that he is not the head of the departnent; the State
Board of Education is recognized as the head of the departnent.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted the arrival of Senator G essel.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said the board is made up of seven voluntary
menbers who are appointed by the governor and confirmed by the
| egi sl ature. They represent four judicial districts, three at-
| arge nmenbers, one of whom nust represent a Regional Education
Attendance Area (REAA). Not nore than four can be of the sane
party as the governor and all nenbers serve at the pleasure of
t he governor.

He addressed the role of the State Board of Education. One of
their duties is to appoint a conm ssioner and the governor
approves that appointnent. He said, in a sense, the conmm ssioner
has two bosses.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that in sone states the board is elected
and acts i ndependent of the governor's office.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed. He said the biggest difference is
whet her the conmmi ssioner is appointed by the board or el ected.

He continued to explain that one of the primary responsibilities
of the board is to pronulgate regulations in response to
statutes which require the board to establish and maintain a
system of public education. He said they do so with counsel from
the Attorney General's Ofice and wth the support of the
departnent. He described the interaction of the board and the
departnment |ast session over regulations regarding HB 278. The
regul ations were reviewed by |law, went out for public conments,
were reviewed by Legislative Legal, and then by the Regul atory
Revi ew Commi tt ee.

He related that the board is responsible for approving charter
schools and residential schools, and submitting a report to the
| egi sl ature annual | y. The board al so sets graduati on
requirenents and recently increased the math requirenent from
two to three credits. The board adopts bylaws that determ ne how
DEED i s run

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the board has adopted statew de goal s.

3:38: 07 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 29, 2015



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that the board |ooks at statew de
goal s periodically. The board has a high-1level educational goal:
"to develop, nmaintain, and continuously inprove a conprehensive,
quality, public education system" The board's mssion is tied
to this goal: "to ensure quality standards-based instruction to
i nprove academ c¢ achi evenent for all students.”

3:40: 22 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about a requirenent for civics.

COW SSIONER HANLEY said there is a difference between
graduation requirenments and standards. The board has not
di scussed having a requirenent for civics; of the three credits
required in social studies, one nust be Alaska Studies. He
t hought a bill had been filed that would add a class on the U'S
Constitution to graduation requirenents.

SENATOR STEVENS said it is a resolution, not a bill. [HB 30]

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY di scussed the duties of the conm ssioner. To
be considered for the role of comm ssioner, the person nust have
a master's degree and five years of experience in education,
three years of which nust be in admnistration. The comm ssi oner
is appointed by, and serves at the pleasure of, the board, and
with the approval of the governor. Either the board or the
governor can renove the comm ssioner.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY questioned if the governor can renove the
commi ssioner since the board appoints and oversees the
conmi Ssi oner .

COMWM SSI ONER HANLEY said the hiring of the commssioner is
approved by the governor.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted the approval is in the initial hire. He
gave an exanple of a conm ssioner who stayed on with the board's
approval, but not with the governor's.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY countered that there have been changes in
| anguage since then.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY recall ed that the above-nentioned instance had to
do with a fixed term

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed. He said the |Ianguage no | onger
allows for a fixed term He opined that if a new governor cones

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -4- January 29, 2015



on board, he or she has the right to retain the comm ssioner or
not .

CHAIR DUNLEAVY said he is trying to understand the
comm ssioner's role and relationship with the board, the
governor, and the legislature in order to determ ne under whose
authority a regulation or law falls. He maintained that the
conmi ssi oner works for the board.

3:44: 21 PM
COWM SSI ONER HANLEY poi nted out that he speaks for the vision of
the governor on educational issues. He said the board neets

gquarterly and provides guidance to the comm ssioner and has the
authority to renove the conm ssioner. He said he looks to the
board to represent Al aska and for gui dance.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY nentioned that some of the conm ssioner's
coment s are not enbedded in I aw. He conpar ed t he
superintendent's role to that of the conm ssioner's. He
enphasi zed that he was seeking that which is enbedded in | aw

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said his conmments were on how he transl ates
the statute and regulations into practice. He stated that AS
14.07. 145 says that "The board shall appoint the Comm ssioner of
Education and Early Devel opnent subject to the approval of the
governor." He said he sees the board and the governor as equa

authorities over the position of comm ssioner.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how the conmi ssioner views the board and
whether it is the policy making body of the departnent.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said according to statutory authority given
to the board, the authority to set policy falls nore to statute
and regulation. The board's work is guided by statute and they
have latitude to affect education regarding grades and
graduation requirenments, which is quite a bit different than a
| ocal school board's authority. A local school board has
oversight of the budget, whereas the DEED budget is conpiled at
the departnent Ilevel and by the conmssioner and wth the
governor. The board has little oversight over the departnent's
budget and less power than a |ocal school board. The board
provides direction and vision and discusses shifts and changes
in education with the conmm ssioner.

3:49: 24 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY referred to AS 14.07.170 (2) where it says "The
board may require school boards or school personnel to submt to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -5- January 29, 2015



the departnment, in the formthe board may require, the district
budget or any information or reports that are reasonably
necessary to assist the departnent in «carrying out its
functions.” He asked if that happens.

COM SSI ONER  HANLEY said it does. It falls under t he
responsibility of Ilocal school boards to apply 70 percent of
their funding to instruction. This funding goes to Facilities
and Finance in DEED, which works with districts. D stricts that
have difficulty reaching 70 percent may go to the board for
review and for waivers.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said he could not find a |law that addresses the
rel ationship between |egislature, the comm ssioner and the
depart nment.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY t hought that was correct.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY noted a requirement of reports from the
departnment to the | egislature.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agr eed.

SENATOR HUGGE NS inquired about post-secondary's role with the
board and the conmm ssioner. He questioned if it was "parallel

play."

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said a few years ago the state board and the
Board of Regents started to bridge the gap and began working
together, nostly on teacher preparation and on dual credit
opportunities.

3:52:25 PM
KENNY GALLAHORN, Menber, State Board of Education, said his role
is to learn fromtoday's discussion.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY provided several exanples of the kinds of
work the board does that is not driven by statute. They renoved
the TerraNova tests, approved variable-term residential schools,
changed graduation requirenents, and worked on "testing out" of
credits. The board continues to make a difference in Al aska
educati on.

3:55: 08 PM

SENATOR STEVENS defined "variable-term residential"™ as a school
that draws students from a variety of areas in the state for
peri ods of tine.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 29, 2015



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed. He said at a traditional residential
school students would reside all year, such as at M. Edgecunbe.
There are currently three or four variabl e-term school s.

SENATOR STEVENS said he would like to hear how they turn out.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY requested a report on the success of variable-
term school s.

3:56: 14 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY turned to the discussion on federal funds. He
hoped to determine the relationships of the state, |egislature,
and board with the U S. Departnent of Education. He wanted to
exanm ne federal grants, how they are spent, and the state's
obl i gati ons.

COWMWM SSI ONER HANLEY said that federal programs fall wunder the
Di vi sion of Teaching and Learni ng Support w thi n DEED

SUSAN  MCCAULEY, Di rector, Teaching and Learning Support,
Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), began a
review of funding prograns related to the Elenentary and
Secondary Education Act (ESEA), those related to the Individuals
with Disabilities Act (IDEA) - special education, and those
related to the Carl Perkins Vocational Education Funds - career
and techni cal education (CTE)

She expl ained that ESEA funds began in 1965 as part of President
Lyndon B. Johnson's "War on Poverty." The funds provide
suppl enental funding for elenentary and secondary education, the
enphasis of which is providing each child with a fair and equa
opportunity for academ c achievenent. The seven funding prograns
are ained at various populations of students who may not have
equal access to education. The intent of the Act was to address
shortcomngs in their education as a result of variable in their
lives.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said there appears to be an assunption that the
states were not doing their job in 1965.

DR. MCCAULEY opined that the shortcom ngs were in the children's
lives; not shortcomngs of state departnents of education in
meeting children's needs. She provided, as exanples, the |inks
bet ween poverty or m gr ant educati on and educati ona
achi evenent .

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -7- January 29, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY said he was referring to perceived holes in state
cover age.

DR. MCCAULEY pointed out that the funding is supplenmentary, not
primary.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY said he was trying to wunderstand how the
relationship with the federal governnent was established in
1965.

4:01:12 PM

DR. MCCAULEY reported that the nobst recent reauthorization of
ESEA was in 2001 - No Child Left Behind (NCLB). She said ESEA
has not been reauthorized since then. There are seven federa

progranms under NCLB

SENATOR GARDNER asked if NCLB nust be reauthorized and if it has
a sunset date.

DR. MCCAULEY explained that the |I|aw, unl ess anmended or
reaut hori zed, stays on the books. The original intent was that
ESEA would be reauthorized every 5 years. In 1994 it was
reaut hori zed under the Cinton admnistration as the | nproving
America School Act. Then, in 2001 it was reauthorized as No
Child Left Behind. Since then adjustnments have been nade to the
Title prograns. Under the current admnistration, waivers are
permtted for elements of NCLB. There is discussion and hope for
a reauthori zati on.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the | aw has not been reauthorized, but under
the current admnistration there is a waiver. He asked about
conponents of the l|law that have changed and how the waiver
wor ks.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY explained that the waiver cane about when
Congress continued to be far from reauthorization. In 2014 the
status was that 100 percent of students had to be proficient and
many schools were failing. Secretary of Education Duncan offered
a waiver from sone of the requirements. States were allowed to
use their own accountability systens providing flexibility for

the Title | funds. Alaska conpleted an 800-page waiver
application and was able to inplenent a new system called the
Al aska School Performance Index (ASPI) - a five-star rating
system

4:05:52 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 29, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY assumed that Secretary Duncan had the authority
to change the Act.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY commented that several nenbers of Congress
believe that Secretary Duncan acted illegally by offering a
wai ver .

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked who authorized Alaska to apply for a
wai ver .

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that DEED worked with DOE to pursue
t he wai ver.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked about the |egislature's invol venent.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said it did not require legislative action
It fit well into the state's authority to act and the board's
Vi si on.

CHAIR  DUNLEAVY repeated hi s gquestion about | egi slative
i nvol venent .

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY noted that DEED worked with the governor on
t he wai ver.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY requested to know what the waiver contained and
how it differed from NCLB

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY expl ained that NCLB contai ned one |evel of
proficiency all students had to neet and it did not neasure
gromh. The state did not agree with that approach. As long as
the state had rigorous standards, an approved accountability
system and student learning attached to teacher evaluations,
then the state could obtain a waiver. He said the state had
al ready taken steps in those three areas. The ASPI score is now
based on proficiency, as well as student growth, attendance, and
the graduation rate, all of which nore accurately nmeasure how a
school is doing.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if it was a profound change from what
Al aska had under NCLB

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said no; it is a nmore effective
accountability nodel and not a paradigm shift. He said he was a
princi pal and teacher for 20 years and experienced frustration
at the l[imted accountability nmethod. Now there are doable ways
to inmprove schools and there is ownership by school s.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- January 29, 2015



4:10: 46 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if other states' waivers are simlar to
Al aska's.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY replied that Al aska researched other states
during the third round of waivers and found sonething that works
for urban and rural Al aska. Since then, changes have been nmade
to adequately neasure alternative schools.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked the commssioner to respond to the
criticism that Al aska's system has been radically changed with
new st andards and assessnments and teacher accountability.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY responded that he would say that the waiver
does not represent a radical change. The state already had
adopted standards - what is expected at each grade level. He
related that | ow NAPE scores demanded a response. He pointed out
that assessnents neasure standards; assessnments had to be
changed to neasure the standards - what is taught. Al aska raised
t he bar.

4:14:29 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if those changes will|l address the |ow score
issues and if a tineline is in place.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said he is confident that the new standards

wll have an inpact. He added that standards are not the only
factors that inpact students' lives and education. He concl uded
that the new standards have been in place for three years and
this year the new assessnents wll take place creating a new
baseline. He predicted that scores will drop at first due to a
hi gher bar.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY sai d that was not the expected change.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY expl ai ned that expectations are now higher.
He predicted that scores would increase eventually.

4:15: 57 PM

SENATOR STEVENS conmented on Common Core and he agreed that it
is not a radical change. He asked if the conm ssioner would
agree that Al aska Standards are significant, but not radical.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY agreed. He gave an exanple of how old
st andards have been "shifted downward" under the new standards.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -10- January 29, 2015



SENATOR HUGA NS referred to Senator Stevens' exanple and opi ned
that the witten test exanple is "dunbed down."

He thought the NCLB waiver was an interesting concept. He
concl uded that the education systemstill has a way to go.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed and said he would be asking for a re-
authorization to the waiver process. Senator Mirkowski is
currently working on one.

4:20: 45 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY related that the authority to get grants was
ceded by the Ilegislature to DCCED and to the board. The
legislature's role is to approve the expenditures. The
depart ment deci des whether there is a waiver, but in the end the
| egi sl ature approves the funding.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY sai d yes.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY suggested that future changes be discussed with
the | egislature.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said there has not been an increase in
requests for authority for receipts due to the waiver or the
departnment's recent actions. There was only one situation that
required the departnment to request funding and that was for a
residential school. The waiver did not require additional
federal funding requests.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY predicted that the legislature may not agree to
receiving funds associated with a waiver.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY repeated that there were no funds tied to
the waiver. No additional authority was needed. He stated that a
heal t hy bal ance is in place.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said it was questionable whether Duncan had the
authority to change the NCLB

4:24: 40 PM

DR. MCCAULEY restated that the purpose of Title |I funds is to
ensure that all students have the opportunity to receive a fair
and equal educati on.

SENATOR STEVENS asked for a definition of "disadvantaged."”

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- January 29, 2015



DR. MCCAULEY replied that the funding mechanism for Title | is
based on poverty.

She described the largest program - Title | A - which provides
financial assistance to |ocal educational agencies and schools
with nunbers and high percentages of children from |owincone
famlies. The goal is to help students living in poverty neet
hi gh academ c standards. She related that all State Education
Agency (SEA) and Local Education Agency (LEA) are eligible for
formul a-driven funds based on census data and free and reduced
 unch dat a.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for a definition of "high nunber.™

DR. MCCAULEY expl ained the funding formula: federal |aw requires
if a school has 75 percent or nore of children in poverty nust
be served with Title | funds; 35 percent is the floor, but the
district has discretion to set their own fl oor.

SENATOR HUGA NS requested the nunmber of Title | schools and
students in the Mat-Su School District area.

DR. MCCAULEY reiterated that districts have discretion to set
their own threshol d.

She continued to explain the formul a.
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for the total anmount of Title | noney.

DR. MCCAULEY noted the total of $38, 150,000 listed on the bottom
of the slide.

She expl ai ned how the funds nust be used. Districts nust devel op
a plan that identifies strategies to address the needs of |ow
achieving students such as: tutoring, instructional materials,
smal | -group instruction, parent involvenent, and professional
devel opnent. The funds can be used for non-lowincone students,
as wel | .

4:30: 33 PM
DR. MCCAULEY addressed Title I A - School Inprovenent Gants
(SIG, which go to LEA' s for assistance with school i nprovenent
for the |lowest perform ng schools. She explained that the LEA s
apply for conpetitive grants. The total Title I A funds were for
$1, 500, 000.

She turned to Title I C - the education of mgrant children.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- January 29, 2015



SENATOR GARDNER asked for a definition of "early learning” in
the context of SIG s.

DR. MCCAULEY said the department is waiting to find that out due
to a new round of funding and changi ng regul ati ons.

She related that the focus of Title ICis mgrant students.
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how Al aska qualifies for these funds.
DR. MCCAULEY deferred to the program adm nistrator to answer.

4:34:21 PM

MARGARET MCKI NNON, Administrator, Title |/NCLB, Teaching and
Learning Support, Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent,
explained the requirenents for the education of mgrant children
who qualify as fishing, agriculture, and dairy famlies.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if a famly that frequently noves between
a rural setting and a city qualifies as a mgrant famly.

DR. MCKINNON said they nust also be engaged in one of the
al  owabl e activities.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how many families qualify.

DR. MCKINNON replied that there are between 10,000 and 11,000
children who qualify in Al aska.

SENATOR STEVENS suggested it is nostly from subsi stence fishers.
DR. MCKI NNON noted that conmercial fishers also qualify.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY nmintained that 10,000 to 11,000 individuals
"filled out the formin a manner that they qualify."

DR. MCKINNON said they were identified by districts as neeting
the eligibility requirenments. She explained the process is to
identify the students and verify their eligibility.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted school is out in the sunmmer when there is
fishing.

4. 37:24 PM
DR. MCCAULEY said the anmount of funding for Title I C was
$6, 875, 000.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -13- January 29, 2015



She explained that Title |I D is nade up of prevention and
intervention prograns for children and youth who are negl ected,
del i nquent, or at-risk. The funding goes to districts that have
students in correctional institutions, and LEA's are eligible
based on the nunber of students served. The funds provide
suppl ementary education and transitions services. The anount of
t hat fundi ng was $250, 000.

She addressed Title Il A - teacher and principal training and
recruiting in order to inprove teacher and principal quality,
such as from professional developnment. SEA's and LEA s are
eligible based on formula-driven funds. The anount of funding
provi ded was $10, 000,000 m | li on.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the nentoring program is in this
cat egory.

DR. MCCAULEY replied that the nentoring programis minly funded
by general funds, but is an allowable activity under Title Il A
f unds.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the results of the funding for
hi ghly qualified teachers.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if he is requesting a report on nmentoring
out cones.

SENATOR HUGA NS requested a definition of "highly qualified" K-
12.

4:40: 54 PM

DR. MCCAULEY related that Title Il B - mathematics and science
partnerships - are conpetitive grants. SEA's are eligible for
formula funds based on funding under Title |, and LEA s are

eligible to submt application for conpetitive grants. There
nmust be a partnership between an institution of higher education
and a high-need district for the purpose of creating
opportunities for enhanced and ongoi ng professional devel opnent
of mathematics and science teachers. The total anobunt of that
f undi ng was $750, 000.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY requested a definition of SEA and LEA

DR. MCCAULEY reiterated those definitions. She added that SEA's
and LEA's are both eligible for all federal funds nentioned so

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- January 29, 2015



far. The department's primary role is to get the funds out to
districts.

She continued with Title II1l language instruction for limted
English proficient (LEP) and inmgrant students. The purpose of
the funds is to increase English proficiency and academc
achievenment for those students. SEA's and LEA's are both
eligible for the funds; LEA s nust have a m ni num nunber of LEP
students to qualify. The funding nust be used for |[|anguage
i nstruction and professional devel opnent for those who work with
LEP students. The amount of funding the departnment has received
is $1, 200, 000.

4:43: 38 PM
DR. MCCAULEY said Title IV B - 21st Century Comrunity Learning
Centers - is for establishing or expanding activities in

comunity learning centers that provide academc enrichnent
during non-school hours for children. An exanples of these
centers are Boys and Grls Cubs. The anount of funding was
$5, 630, 000 m I lion.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if there is any data to show the success of
this grant.

DR. MCCAULEY said the data collected shows conpletion of the
activities. The grants provide data by individual program and
are not aggregat ed.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY concluded that the delivery was evaluated; not
t he out cone.

DR. MCCAULEY clarified that the departnent's primary role is to
nmoni tor for conpliant use of funding.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said it is unknown if there is a nodel that is
hel pi ng students with academ cs.

DR. MCCAULEY deferred to the program adm ni strator to answer.

PAUL PRUSSI NG Deputy Director, Teaching and Learning Support,
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent, answer ed
questions related to Title | grants. He stated that the nodel is
the 21st Century Conmmunity Learning Center. He said there is a
strong connection between after school prograns and increased
student achievenent. |Inprovenents are shown by the neasures
witten in the applications.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- January 29, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if that was a "no."

MR, PRUSSING said it was a "yes." Al Boys and Grls Cubs are
showi ng positive results for student success.

SENATOR STEVENS pointed out that in small villages the schools
are used for nmany purposes. He asked if Boys and Grls Cubs are
primarily in large communities. He inquired if there was funding
for Title IVBin smaller communities.

DR. MCCAULEY responded that the larger districts receive funding
under the program

MR. PRUSSING clarified that Boys and Grls Cub is just one of
the non-profits that is eligible to apply for the funding. The
majority of the applicants are districts.

4:48:29 PM

DR MCCAULEY  turned to Title \ - flexibility and
accountability. The purpose of the funding is to allow
departnments and districts to target federal funds to federal
progranms that nost effectively address the wunique needs of
states and localities. There are three areas of funding: Title
VI A - inproving academ c achievenent; Title VI B(l) - small,
rural school achievenent program (SRSA); and Title VI B(2) -
rural and | owincone schools program (RLIS)

She said the purpose of Title VI A - inproving academc
achievenrent - is to pay the costs of developnent and
i npl ementation of state assessnments and standards that are
required by ESEA. Al SEA's are eligible for $3 mllion of
funding, with additional funding prorated based on census data.
They are required to develop, inplenent, and dissem nate
i nformati on about state assessnents and standards.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the grant covers assessnents that are
bei ng devel oped.

DR. MCCAULEY said it pays about 50 percent of those costs.

She expl ained that funds for Title VI B(1l) - small, rural school
achi evenent program (SRSA) - can be applied for under Title Vi
B(1) or under Title VI B(2). It is for the purpose of addressing
t he unique needs of rural school districts that |ack personnel
and resources needed to conpete effectively for federal grants.
It provides for the flexible use of nonies fromall of the grant
progranms for very small districts.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 16- January 29, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY sunmarized that it is a grant that helps
districts spend ot her grant noney.

DR. MCCAULEY restated that grant funds are available, as well as
the flexible use of other grant funds. She gave an exanple of
$20,000 in grant funds for M. Edgecunbe within DEED s budget,
as the only exanple of Title VI B(1). The ampunt of funding is
so small it won't have nuch inpact, unless the funds are pooled
t oget her.

She said Title VI B(2) for rural and |owincone school programnms
(RLI'S), are for districts that don't qualify under Title VI B(1)
because of a population that exceeds the definition of "small
rural.” The only exanple of this is the Lower Kuskokwi m Schoo
District, which includes Bethel. The grant provided for the
flexible use of nonies from all of the grant prograns for this
district in the amount of $88, 000.

4:53: 04 PM
SENATOR GARDNER inquired if the two grant prograns could be
consi dered wai vers for other Title funds.

DR. MCCAULEY agreed; they allow the pooling of funds for any of
the all owabl e activities.

SENATOR GARDNER gave a hypothetical exanple where a smal
qual i fying school wunder Title VI B(2) could pull nonies from
other Title grants and use themall for a pressing need, such as
| anguage instruction. It provides for the flexible use of nonies
fromall of the grant prograns for very small districts

DR. MCCAULEY said that was correct.

4:54:26 PM

DR. MCCAULEY explained Title X - honeless education program -
(McKi nney-Vent o Honel ess Educati on Assistance Act of 2001). The
focus is on homeless students and funds are available to SEA s
based on the nunmber of students identified and to LEA s through
the conpetitive grant process. She shared a broad Ilist of
acceptable activities, such as transportation, clothing, and
| aundry. She said the anmount of funding that has been received
is $170, 000.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how many honeless children have been
identified in Al aska.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -17- January 29, 2015



DR. MCCAULEY said she does not know, however, the qualifying
districts are Anchorage, Mat-Su, Kenai, and Fairbanks.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY requested a definition of "honel ess.”

DR. MCCAULEY replied that the definition of honeless is when a

student does not have a permanent hone; it includes couch-
surfing youth. To qualify for the funds, the district nust have
a honel ess education coordinator and a honeless |iaison who

identifies honeless students. Students and famlies are not
responsi bl e for paperwork; educators and the departnent are.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the school would need to have two
personnel to fill the positions in order to eligible for the
grant.

DR. MCCAULEY replied that the coordinator is a DEED staff and
the liaison is a district enployee. She did not know if they are
full-time positions.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the coordinator and liaison are paid by
the grant.

DR.  MCCAULEY understood that the required staff are funded
t hrough grant funds.

SENATOR HUGAE NS asked how much noney is available after salary
costs.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY comrented that the positions are probably split-
f unded.

DR.  MCCAULEY agreed. She said the positions wusually have
responsibilities affiliated with several Title prograns.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY requested information about the amount of noney
received fromeach grant and the total state match

5:00: 18 PM

DR. MCCAULEY said there are two federal progranms that are not
under  ESEA. The first is Title WV - Individuals wth
Disabilities Act - or, special education. The program ensures

that all children with disabilities have available to them a
free, appropriate public education. Al SEA's and LEA' s are
eligible for funding based on average daily nenbership and the
nunber of students living in poverty. The program entails a
conplicated area of federal law with many requirenents. The

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 18- January 29, 2015



state receives $36,000,000 for the general program and
$1, 100, 000 for the preschool program

CHAIR DUNLEAVY asked when Individuals wth Disabilities
Education Act (1 DEA) cane into existence.

DR. MCCAULEY said in 1975 the Education of Al Handi capped
Children Act was enacted; it became IDEA in 1990.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked what ages are covered.
DR. MCCAULEY said birth to 21 years.

She turned to the final program - Carl D. Perkins Vocation and
Applied Technol ogy Education Act. They are referred to as CTE
funds and the purpose is to develop the academ c, vocational,
and technical skills of secondary students and post-secondary
students who elect to enroll in vocational and technica

education program The eligibility for SEA funding is based on
the state's population in certain age groups, and per-capita
income. LEA's nust have a sufficient nunber of students to
generate a mnimm allocation of $15,000. They nust develop
plans to strengthen the academ c and career/technical skills of
CTE students. Total funds received were $4, 215,000 nmillion.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if there are any plans to change this
grant.

DR. MCCAULEY said there are no planned federal changes to the
program In Alaska there is a conversation as to how to best use
the funds. The challenge is that prograns nust have sufficient
size, scope, and quality to be effective. There is on-going
conversation in DEED about how to neet |ocal needs, especially
in small districts.

5:06: 09 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if there are other grants going to schools.

DR. MCCAULEY explained that there are two other federal grant
programs, but they are not of the sane nature; school |unch and
Head Start. They are very different in nmethod of allocation and
nmoni t ori ng.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY requested a copy of all the grants and the state
mat ch. He inquired about the possibility of adding nore noney to
CTE and what process could be used if the governor wanted to
change an educational policy or grant.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -19- January 29, 2015



COWM SSI ONER  HANLEY responded that changes can be nmde
statutorily. Very few would be done by changing regulations.
Hypot hetically, if Carl Perkins changed and the state could
expand CTE, the departnent would have to have receipt authority,
but it would not require legislative action. The governor's
vision to increase opportunities in this fiscal climte involves
collaborating with private enterprise for job training, and
expandi ng private/ public partnerships.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how it would play out if the governor
requested a change and the board did not agree with it.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said it would be subject to approval by the
governor. He explained that he works wth the governor and
follows the guidance of DEED authority and the board. He
concluded that they are all part of the executive branch that is
headed by the governor. There is some alignnent between the
board and the governor's vision.

5:12: 29 PM
SENATOR STEVENS tal ked about honeless students and recognized
that teachers go beyond what is expected.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY suggested |ooking at the packet that shows
how federal prograns inpact individual districts.

5:14: 37 PM

There being nothing further to cone before the conmttee, Chair
Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Committee at
5:14 p. m

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 20- January 29, 2015



